
 

 
 
2021-08-13 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL 
ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR THE 

INSTALLATION OF FIRE SPRINKLER SYSTEMS AT THE 
AFRICAN RAINFOREST AND INDO MALAYA PAVILIONS 

RFP 24 (2021-07) 
 

ADDENDUM 3 
 
This addendum shall be incorporated into, and form part of RFT No.: TZC T 42-2020-11 and take 
precedence over all requirements of the previously issued bid documents including plans. This 
addendum must be signed by the bidder (signing officer) in the appropriate space and must be 
attached to the form for submission by the bidder. This addendum consists of six (6) page(s) and 
the documents listed below. 
 

1. CLOSING DATE: 
Original Closing Date: Wednesday, 2021-08-18, 1200 hours (noon, local time) 
Revised Closing Date: Friday, 2021-08-20, 1200 hours (noon, local time) 
 

2. SCHEDULE OF EVENTS: 
The following schedule of events replaces the original schedule of events from Section 
8.0 of the RFP: 
 
Pre-Award  
Release of RFP 2021-07-23 
Proponents’ Question Deadline 2021-08-03 
Submissions Due 2021-08-20 
Interviews, if necessary Week of August 23rd 
Notification of Award by the Toronto Zoo Week of August 23rd 
Post Award  
Preliminary Draft Design Due 2021-10-08 
Final Design Due 2021-11-24 
Release of Tender 2021-12-03 
Construction Begins 2022-03-21 
  

 
3. QUESTION: 

The Schedule of Events identifies the Construction Begins 2022-03-21, however it does 
not identify a proposed Substantial Performance date.  The Scope of Services requires 
the Consultant to attend and take minutes at all design and construction meetings 
throughout the duration of the project.  Can the Zoo provide an estimate for the number 
of meeting the Consultant is to participate in, or a proposed construction period based 
on providing by-weekly meeting? 
 
RESPONSE: 
Assume a construction completion date of 2022-12-31.  Provide a price per site visit for 
any additional site visits that may be required. 
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4. QUESTION: 

It is our understanding that AutoCAD drawings for the African Pavilion are 
available.  However, only PDFs with limited AutoCAD drawings are available for the Indo 
Malayan Pavilion.  Please confirm. 
 
RESPONSE: 

 This is correct.  All drawings can be made available to the successful proponent. 
 

5. QUESTION: 
Please confirm the following drawings are available: 

a. Mechanical drawings for African and Indo Malayan Pavilions 
b. Site plan drawings indicating incoming water mains for African and Indo Malayan 

Pavilions 
 
RESPONSE: 

 See additional drawings below. 
 

6. QUESTION: 
Please confirm the following documentation is available: 

a. Fire hydrants flow tests for African and Indo Malayan Pavilions 
b. Structural roof load data for African and Indo Malayan Pavilions 

 
RESPONSE: 
 See attached fire hydrant flow tests.   
 
See attached structural notes from a glazing feasibility study previously completed for the 
African Rainforest Pavilion.  The successful proponent shall be responsible for determining 
the ability for the pavilions to structurally support the new sprinkler system. 
 

7. QUESTION: 
The RFP requests that a Cost Consultant be retained to provide a Class D and Class A 
cost estimate.  Is it acceptable that the Consultant use internal forces to generate the 
cost estimate, or does it need to be an independent vendor? 
 
RESPONSE: 
 The successful proponent shall retain an external cost consultant to provide the cost 
estimates.   
 

8. QUESTION: 
It is our understanding the requirements to sprinkler the two buildings is being initiated by 
the Zoo’s Insurance Provider.  Please identify if the Insurance provider has any design 
requirements for this project or if the design only needs to comply with Ontario Building 
Code. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 The insurance provider has no special design requirements.  It is our understanding that 
the design needs to comply with the Ontario Building Code.   
 

9. QUESTION: 
Please identify if the Insurance provider has any commissioning requirements for this 
project or if commissioning only needs to comply with Ontario Building Code.   
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RESPONSE: 
 The insurance provider has no special design requirements.  It is our understanding that 
the commissioning needs to comply with the Ontario Building Code.   
 

10. QUESTION: 
Per 2.2 and 2.3 of the RFP it is our understanding that a design of a new fire sprinkler 
system for the African Rainforest and Indo Malaya Pavilion is to be provided.  Based on 
the site review and documentation provided it is unknow if the existing pressure and 
water (gpm) is sufficient for a new sprinkler system.  As such, a new fire pump may be 
required (per building).  Is it the intent of the RFP that if a fire pump is required that the 
engineering effort required to generate a new fire pump design be included in this 
bid?  Please clarify. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 It is the successful proponent’s responsibility to determine the incoming water pressure 
and volume.  If the incoming water supply is not sufficient to support a sprinkler system, it 
is the successful proponent’s responsibility to design all supporting infrastructure required 
to provide a fully functioning sprinkler system including a fire pump.   
 

11. QUESTION: 
Will the consultant be responsible for issuing drawings for construction and completing 
hydraulic calculations or will the successful sprinkler contractor be responsible for detailed 
sprinkler design, hydraulic calculations and issuing the drawings for permit? 
 
RESPONSE: 
 The successful proponent will be responsible for issuing tender-ready drawings & 
specifications, permit drawings & specifications, and issued-for-construction drawings & 
specifications.  The successful proponent is responsible for detailed sprinkler design, 
hydraulic calculations, and is responsible for obtaining all required permits.     
 

12. QUESTION: 
Are drawing files of the building and reflected ceiling plan available in CAD format? 
 
RESPONSE: 
 Drawings for the African Rainforest Pavilion are available in CAD format.  They will be 
made available to the successful proponent.  These drawings are for reference only and 
all measurements shall be verified on site.   
 

13. QUESTION: 
Are water servicing plans available for this site? 
 
RESPONSE: 
Yes.  See attached drawing. 
 

14. QUESTION: 
It is not anticipated that the existing 4” incoming water service observed in the buildings 
will be sufficient to serve a new sprinkler system. Has a proposed connection location to 
the facilities water services been established? 
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RESPONSE: 
 No, this has not been established.  It will be the successful proponent’s responsibility to 
determine suitability of the incoming water service, and design any changes required to 
provide adequate water supply for the sprinkler system.    
 

15. QUESTION: 
Is there existing hydrant flow test data available for this site? If no data exists, we 
suggest that a cash allowance of $7,500 be included in the contract for water supply 
testing. 
 
RESPONSE: 
See attached hydrant flow tests. 
 

16. QUESTION: 
Is the installation of a fire pump explicitly excluded from the design work being tendered 
as it is not known at this point in time if it will be required? 
 
RESPONSE: 
 No, the design of a fire pump is included if a fire pump is required.  This will be up to the 
successful proponent to determine.   
 

17. QUESTION: 
Is a full set of architectural drawings available for each building? The drawings shared 
with the RFP package appear incomplete. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 The Toronto Zoo has the full set of architectural drawings from the original building 
construction.  There are also some drawings available from renovations.  All available 
drawings will be made available to the successful proponent.  And additional drawings that 
are required and any site measurements will be the responsibility of the successful 
proponent.   
 

18. QUESTION: 
Are structural drawings available for each building? Alternatively, will these plans need 
to be generated by a structural engineer as part of the scope of work for this project 
to verify that the existing structure can support the new sprinkler system? If the structural 
engineering survey is required, we suggest a $5,000 cash allowance for engaging a lift 
operator to assist with the survey of the structure. 
 
RESPONSE: 
 The Toronto Zoo has the full set of structural drawings from the original building 
construction.  These drawings can be made available to the successful proponent.  Any 
structural analysis required to determine if the building can support the sprinkler system is 
the responsibility of the successful proponent.  Access to most areas of the pavilion is not 
possible with a lift given the slope & width of the pathways.   
 

19. QUESTION: 
Will access to animal areas be possible during design for survey purposes? 
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RESPONSE: 
 Access to animal areas will be possible on a case-by-case basis.  Access cannot be 
provided to all areas simultaneously.  The successful proponent will be required to work 
with the Zoo to determine how and when various areas can be accessed as required. 
 

20. QUESTION: 
Will the proposed new sprinkler system devices be connected to the existing building fire 
alarm system? 
 
RESPONSE: 
The sprinkler system is to be designed to all applicable codes.  If connection to the fire 
alarm system is not a code requirement, this will need to be discussed with the Toronto 
Zoo during the design process to determine whether or not it should be connected. 
 
 

21. ADD DRAWINGS: 
 
SHEET NUMBER SHEET NAME 
M-1 AFRICA & INDO-MALAYAN PAVILIONS SITE PLAN & LEGENDS 
M-2 AFRICAN PAVILION SOUTH HALF LOWER LEVEL PLUMBING 
M-3 AFRICAN PAVILION SOUTH HALF UPPER LEVEL PLUMBING 
M-4 AFRICAN PAVILION NORTH HALF LOWER LEVEL PLUMBING 
M-5 AFRICAN PAVILION NORTH HALF UPPER LEVEL PLUMBING 
M-6 INDO MALAYA PAVILION LOWER LEVELS PLUMBING 
M-7 INDO MALAYA PAVILION UPPER LEVEL PLUMBING 
M-8 AFRICAN PAVILION SOUTH HALF LOWER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-9 AFRICAN PAVILION SOUTH HALF UPPER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-10 AFRICAN PAVILION NORTH HALF LOWER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-11 AFRICAN PAVILION NORTH HALF UPPER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-12 INDO MALAYA PAVILION LOWER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-13 INDO MALAYA PAVILION UPPER LEVEL HEAT & VENT 
M-14 AFRICA & INDO MALAYA PAVILION SCHEDULE SHEET 
A-3.07 SITE PLAN - WATER 
 
 

Receipt of the addendum shall be acknowledged as part of your submission.  
 
The Board of Management of the Toronto Zoo reserves the right to reject any or all quotations or 
to accept any quotation, should it deem such action to be in its interests.  
 
If you have any queries regarding this matter, please contact Mr. Peter Vasilopoulos, Supervisor, 
Purchasing & Supply, at 416-392-5916. 
 
Yours truly, 
 
 
Peter Vasilopoulos  
Supervisor, Purchasing & Supply 
 
I/we hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum and make allowance in my bid.  
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Signed (Must be Signing Officer of Firm) 
 
 

 
Name of Firm  
   
  

Date  
 

 
END OF ADDENDUM 3 
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